

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council

Saturday 28 January 2017 at 1.00 pm

The Green Nunhead Community Centre 5, Nunhead Green, Nunhead London SE15 3QQ

Note: The Community Council Forum meeting will follow immediately after this meeting.

Membership

Councillor Sunil Chopra (Chair)
Councillor Sandra Rhule (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Fiona Colley
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor Renata Hamvas

Councillor Barrie Hargrove Councillor Richard Livingstone Councillor Victoria Mills Councillor Jamille Mohammed Councillor Johnson Situ

Councillor Michael Situ Councillor Cleo Soanes

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a claim form at the meeting.

Access

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. Further details on building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council's web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.

Contact Beverley Olamijulo on 020 7525 7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk



Eleanor Kelly Chief Executive Date: 20 January 2017





Peckham and Nunhead Community Council

Saturday 28 January 2017 1.00 pm

The Green, Nunhead 5, Nunhead Green, Nunhead London SE15 3QQ

Note: The Community Council Forum meeting will follow immediately after this meeting

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

2. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business being admitted to the agenda.

5. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

1 - 10

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2016.

MAIN BUSINESS

6. **DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS**

The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received at this meeting.

This must relate to a subject matter on this agenda only.

Any other deputation requests would be considered at the community council forum meeting which will be subject to the chair's agreement.

7. CLEANER GREENER SAFER: CHANGE CONTROL REPORT - FUNDING REALLOCATION (TIME: 1.15 PM)

11 - 18

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members to consider the recommendations contained within the report.

8. CLEANER GREENER SAFER 2017/18: CAPITAL FUNDING ALLOCATION (TIME: 1.25 PM)

19 - 29

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members to consider the recommendations contained within the report.

Date: 20 January 2017



Peckham and Nunhead Community Council

MINUTES of the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council held on Tuesday 15 November 2016 at 7.00 pm at St Mary's Church and Community Centre, 17 St Mary's Road, London, SE15 2EA

PRESENT: Councillor Sunil Chopra (Chair)

Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Richard Livingstone

Councillor Victoria Mills

Councillor Jamille Mohammed

Councillor Johnson Situ Councillor Michael Situ Councillor Cleo Soanes

OFFICER Matthew Hill, Head of Highways

SUPPORT: Bill Legassick, Environmental Health Officer

Yvonne Bastien, Ground Maintenance Supervisor

Gary Douglas, School Travel Plan Advisor

Ernst Erasmus Aboricultural Officer

Gill Kelly, Community Council Development Officer

Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

The chair introduced himself and welcomed councillors, members of the public and officers to the meeting.

The chair thanked representatives of St Mary's Church for hosting the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES

Councillors Sandra Rhule (vice-chair), Fiona Colley and Nick Dolezal had submitted their apologies for absence. Councillor Johnson Situ gave his apologies for lateness.

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

There were none.

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair agreed to accept as an late and urgent item the allocation of funding from the highways capital devolved budget for 2015-16 and 2016-17.

5. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes including the following amendment of the meeting held on 21 September 2016 be agreed as an accurate record and signed by the chair, including the following amendment: That Councillor Jasmine Ali's apologies for absence be recorded in the minutes.

5.1 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Council's habitual complaints policy

The clerk explained that the public question concerning the above which was raised at the previous meetings in June 2016 and September 2016 was rejected in accordance with community council procedure rule 7.3.4 (f). The question was ruled out of order, because the subject matter raised a grievance for which there are other established processes within the council for a resolution.

Council's commitment to honesty, openness and accountability

The clerk explained that the public question concerning the above raised a grievance under community council procedure rule 7.3.4 (f), and therefore was rejected for the reasons outlined above.

With the chair's agreement, Councillor Livingstone suggested whether a written response could be provided before the next meeting.

The council's response following the meeting:

Community councils offer an opportunity for local people to engage with the democratic process and act as a focal point for discussion on matters that affect the area. If you wish local councillors to comment on the matters you raise, I would recommend that you contact them individually; it would be inappropriate for the community council to comment on the actions of councillors and council officers.

Members of the public can submit a complaint, if they believe that councillors were acting in a manner that was outside the code of conduct, and they could raise a complaint with the council's Monitoring Officer.

Link to the council's website on how to complain: http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200038/councillors_mps_and_meps/1367/your_councillors/2

6. DEPUTATIONS

The community council received two deputation requests from local residents in Peckham and Nunhead.

6.1 DEPUTATION REQUEST FROM THE LANE WARD RESIDENTS

The first deputation was presented by some residents of The Lane ward who were opposed to the council's proposal to remove the "ability for residents to formally consider traffic management schemes at community council meetings."

The spokesperson, Alastair Roots addressed the meeting and outlined that local residents would like further clarification from the council that the traffic schemes would not be cut or reduced at community councils. The residents would like to ensure there was greater transparency with non–strategic schemes especially in relation to air quality. Alastair said it was important for residents to comment on dropped kerbs and any decisions that would not hinder the process, but provide more clarity on traffic management schemes.

Following the deputation, Councillor Hargrove addressed the meeting. He outlined that the community councils would continue to consult on traffic management schemes in the way it does now.

He explained that the consultation which was held last year resulted in proposals being made to make community council meetings and more community engagement focussed. He said it was also a way to improve community participation with the council and to ensure there was better engagement with local people. He confirmed that minor traffic decisions would not be considered at community councils.

The meeting took on board the following comments after the deputation:

The proposed changes would still include greater transparency in the decision making process to ensure that the council was consulting with the public.

The overview and scrutiny committee could still call in the strategic (including larger schemes) and non-strategic items.

Residents would still have an opportunity to have their say at the meeting on traffic management issues.

Ward councillors would still have an opportunity to refer the matter to community councils, if they were concerned with a particular scheme.

The community council could consult members and proceed to statutory consultation, if no formal objections were received. If there were objections to a scheme, then the item would be presented to the cabinet member.

6.2 DEPUTATION REPORT EDWIN HOUSE

This deputation was presented by representatives of Bells Gardens Tenants and Residents Association and residents of Edwin House.

The representatives stated that the purpose of their deputation was to start the process of allocating funding to the TRA so that a secure door entry system was installed at Edwin House.

The deputation report outlines that residents of Edwin House had endured long standing problems with people from outside the area with people using the lifts and entrances of the block for anti-social activities.

The spokesperson, Paul Wright addressed the meeting. He explained that Edwin House had been a focus of anti-social behaviour for a long time with complaints being received from residents on a regular basis. The matter had been referred to their local ward councillors and the police ward panel.

Peckham ward councillor Councillor Soanes highlighted that Councillors Barrie Hargrove, Johnson Situ and herself had attended the estate and witnessed the end result of the antisocial behaviour problems residents experienced all the time. They attended the local tenants and residents meetings and were able to hear the residents concerns. Councillor Soanes stated that the residents should not have to put up with this which was why ward colleagues welcomed the attendance of the deputation and the local petition which was presented to members at the meeting.

Councillor Hargrove referred to the community wardens who had seen evidence of rough sleeping and other activities of a sexual nature at the entrances and stairway of Edwin House. He emphasised that it was a very serious situation.

The following motion was agreed at the meeting.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the deputation from representatives of Bells Gardens Tenants and Residents Association be noted.
- 2. That the long standing problems with anti social behaviour at Edwin House be noted.
- 3. That consideration should be given for Edwin House block to be included on the entry door programme 2019/20, as it was the only block that did not have a secure entry system. The police inspector who was present at the meeting gave an undertaking that the police would write formally to the council about the on-going issues and the urgent need of a secure entry system at Edwin House.

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS

Crown Post Office, Peckham High Street

Robert O'Hara, an architect, addressed the meeting on the above. He said he was acting on behalf of the developers who in turn were working with Travelodge and the current

owners of the Post Office. He explained the proposals were to provide a new hotel on the post office site. The proposed development would also include new facilities for the post office.

Robert said the developers were consulting the community council and community groups e.g. Peckham Vision and Peckham Society about their plans.

The plan would be to demolish the existing (1960s) post office building and provide a new build on the same location. Subject to planning approval the building works would start in 2017.

In response to questions, regarding the timeline for the development; Robert confirmed that there would be no disruption to the service although he understood that due to the closure of the Rye Lane post office this created a knock-on effect at the post office in Peckham. He acknowledged that the number of serving counters had to be addressed particularly during its busiest times.

Following further questions, Robert responded by stating that the post office had always been a franchise. The hotel would benefit the community because it would create jobs.

People wanted to know how the consultation would be relayed to the local community. Robert said anyone could raise any specific issues or questions through him and representatives from the post office.

The chair thanked Robert for attending the meeting. He agreed to be available for questions during the break.

Police updates

Inspector Alex Ogilvie introduced himself as the new inspector for the wards covered by Peckham and Nunhead. Inspector Ogilvie had been in post for three weeks and was still getting used to some of the issues in the borough.

Inspector Ogilvie reported on the crime statistics for the area and stated there had been increase in robbery offences particularly over the summer months. He said crime of this sort was mostly carried out by people using mopeds — usually from neighbouring boroughs. In light of this, the police decided to increase their patrols.

He mentioned that a recent stop and search incident in Nunhead Green found several individuals were carrying knives. They were subsequently arrested and charged.

In response to questions, each ward would be given an extra dedicated ward officer Inspector Ogilvie confirmed this would happen within the next few weeks. He said this would depend on the demands and what the issues were.

Inspector Ogilvie gave a commitment to write formally to the council about the continued problems at Edwin House. He said he would speak to the night economy team and provide support whenever it was needed.

Peckham Coal line

Lesley Wertheimer briefly spoke about the Peckham Coal line project and its feasibility study. She said the project wanted to hear people's views on proposals for a safe route

from Peckham station to Queens Road.

People were given the opportunity to participate in a short questionnaire and to share their thoughts about the project.

For more information visit: http://peckhamcoalline.org

8. THEME FOR THE MEETING: TRAFFIC, TRANSPORT AND ROAD SAFETY

The chair introduced the theme for the meeting which was on traffic, transport and road safety. Officers from environment and leisure were available to address the meeting and to respond to questions.

Matt Hill, Head of Highways responded to a question concerning the road closure at Camberwell Grove which was due to the repair works at the railway bridge. Matt mentioned that the council had been working with Network Rail to get the road re-opened in 2017. The council and TfL have to work on a design and check the availability of funding options from TfL.

Air quality and traffic pollution

Bill Legassick, Environmental Health Officer, spoke about the air quality and its strategy. He announced that the council would be carrying out a consultation in mid- December 2016 to the beginning February 2017 on the air quality action plan. He said the council were continuously monitoring air quality around Elephant and Castle and Old Kent Road.

Bill addressed provided visual displays by way of a PowerPoint regarding the levels of air quality and the safe levels of pollution in parts of the borough. He explained that Southwark had joined 11 other boroughs to participate in the anti-idling project.

Anti-idling project:

People were asked if they wanted to become a volunteer to help improve the local air quality. More information was available at: www.idlingaction.london or email info@idlingaction.london

Making streets safer

Yvonne Bastien, Grounds Maintenance Supervisor, was available during the meeting to speak to local residents.

Safer routes in Southwark

Gary Douglas, School Travel Plans Advisor, spoke about his role which was to encourage schools to develop a school travel plan. This meant encouraging children to walk, cycle or ride a scooter to promote healthy living. Gary said the school travel plan was also designed to reduce congestion during school times. The council also encouraged more children to cycle or walk to school. It was noted that some schools in the borough were accredited to encourage pupils to walk or cycle. Gary referred to an initiative Bellenden School did which was "build a bike programme". This enabled young people to build a bike from recycled bike parts and gave them the opportunity to keep the bike free of charge once it was built. Gary said it was important to keep people fully engaged and involved in

order for everyone to remain healthy and safe.

Southwark parks and open spaces

Ernst Eramus, Arboricultural Officer presented information about the number of trees that are proactively managed by Southwark (57,000). He said the tree section manages trees on highways, housing estates and parks/cemeteries. Trees in Nunhead Cemetery are also managed on an adhoc basis.

The council carries out a full visual tree assessment and survey of trees every 3 to 5 years recording the height, spread, condition, and hazards and recommending works.

The council maintains approximately 300 trees in the borough through planting and providing support and advice to other council departments relating to trees.

The reasons for removing a tree would be: If the tree was dead, there was alot of decay, if there was damage to walls and properties or inappropriate planting, narrowing footpaths or root damage.

The council's responsibility for pruning a dangerous tree would be lamp columns, low hanging branches and subsidence.

The chair thanked all officers for their presentations.

The ward based workshops were held afterwards.

9. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY

The question was submitted to council assembly on the 30 November 2016. The response was noted below.

Community council question

What further action could the council take to monitor as well as boost the range and quality of apprenticeships on offer to young people in the borough?

Response

The Southwark Apprenticeship Standard was launched in March 2015 to underpin the council's commitment to create 2000 apprenticeships with a clear message on quality. The Standard is comprised of four quality criteria which outline the key elements of a quality apprenticeship:

- Minimum contract term of 12 months
- Payment of the London Living Wage
- Quality training provision (a further technical definition is provided)
- Proper mentoring and support.

There are currently 34 organisations signed up to the Standard as partners (meeting all the criteria), supporters (meeting at least 3 of the 4 criteria) and champions (organisations which do not directly employ apprentices but which work with employers

to do so). See below.

Partners

A J Morrisroe & Sons Ltd

A&E Elkins Ltd Barclavs

Better Bankside

Brigade and Beyond Food

Capita GLA

Harrow Green

JCCS L&Q

London South Bank University

Lyndon Scaffolding Plc

Mears

Norton Rose Fulbright

Peabody PwC Tideway

Walworth Garden farm

Supporters

Ardmore Construction

Denbre Essentia

Everyone Active F M Conway Keepmoat Mondrian London

Notting Hill Housing Group

Suzanne James

Champions

Blue Bermondsey Living Wage Foundation Pecan St Giles Team London Bridge

Waterloo Quarter Inspire

In addition to engaging employers through the Standard, the council is providing two target services to supplement existing business and employment support projects. A free business support service is available to all Southwark small and medium enterprises (SMEs) to help them create quality apprenticeships. This service is supported by a sales contract which is ensuring as many SMEs as possible are made aware of the service. To date 74 employers have been engaged through this service. A pre-apprenticeship service is available to all Southwark employers to help better connect them to the labour market. The service works with residents close to the labour market and has close ties with Southwark Apprenticeship Standard partners and supporters, connecting them to some of the best opportunities in the borough. In November 2016, a campaign targeting young, unemployed and low paid residents was launched. This campaign aims to raise awareness of, and interest in, apprenticeships among all residents. It has been developed in partnership with eight local employers:

Greater London Assembly Brigade and Beyond Food Tideway
Price Waterhouse Coopers Barclays Essentia
Better Bankside Better Bankside

The Local Economy Team works closely with procurement colleagues to support the integration of apprenticeships in new contracts.

To date the council has delivered 803 apprenticeships through a combination of direct delivery, contracting, commissioning, and business support and engagement.

The council has also been awarded best borough by London Councils for supply chain and outperforms all London Boroughs in creating apprenticeships through working with business.

10. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There was no formal public question time.

Questions were referred to in the ward discussion when the themed part of the meeting took place during the workshops.

11. LOCAL PARKING AND TRAFFIC REPORT

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members considered the recommendations contained within the report.

RESOLVED:

That the following local traffic and parking amendments set out in the appendices to the report be approved subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory consultation and procedures:

- Woods Road to install new double yellow lines at the junctions with Burchell Road and Colmore Mews to maintain access for refuse and emergency vehicles.
- Tower Mill Road to install double yellow lines on junctions and adjacent to footway build outs to maintain access and to prevent obstructive and dangerous parking and to improve inter visibility at junctions for all road users.

12. SECURE CYCLE PARKING (CYCLE HANGAR)

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members considered the recommendations contained within the report.

RESOLVED:

That the implementation of a cycle hangar in Kincaid Road be approved, subject to the necessary statutory procedures.

13. HIGHWAYS CAPITAL INVESTMENT FOR 2015/16 AND 2016/17 (LATE ITEM)

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

The item follows on from the local ward decisions that were taken on the 21 September 2016 when Members considered the Highways Capital Investment for 2015/16 and 2016/17.

RESOLVED:

That the funding from the Highways Capital Investment for 2015/16 and 2016/17 be allocated to:

Peckham Rye ward

The pavement and the tarmacked area that runs along Peckham Rye Common on the southern side of East Dulwich Road – the tree sculpture sits on this stretch.

As part of the improvements to the pavement area this would include funding from the cleaner greener safer (CGS) programme. If the CGS funding was approved the parks team would lead the project and use the allocated Highways funding as part of that.

The meeting ended at 9.50 pm	
CHAIR:	
DATED:	

Item No.	Classification: Open	Date: 28 January 2017	Meeting Name: Peckham and Nunhead Community Council
Report title):	Cleaner Greener Safer: Funding Reallocation	
Ward(s) or affected:	groups	Livesey, Nunhead, Peckham, Peckham Rye, The Lane	
From:		Head of Highways	

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Peckham and Nunhead Community Council approve the re-allocation of a total of £73,412 to two existing projects and as part of the 2017/2018 programme, as set out in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2. Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) is part of the London Borough of Southwark's capital programme. Between 2003 and 2016 £8.7m has been made available local residents in Peckham and Nunhead to apply for awards to make their local area a better place to live. The programme attracts hundreds of proposals ranging from a few hundred pounds for bulb planting to brighten up open spaces to tens of thousands of pounds to create community gardens. These projects often introduce new ideas such as outdoor gyms in public spaces, community gardens, public art and energy saving projects which not only make the borough cleaner, greener and safer but contribute to a sustainable public realm by involving residents in the funding process and in the delivery of projects.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

- 3. Appendix 1 highlights seventeen projects which have a total under spend of £65,752.
- 4. Appendix 1 also details £7,660 funding from the 2016/2017 CGS programme which remains unallocated.
- 5. It is recommended that the under spend of £10,429 from Solomon's Passage Community Safety and Environmental Improvements, project reference [001431], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 6. It is recommended that the under spend of £3,700 from Rowan and Pear Court garden, project reference [106373], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 7. It is recommended that the under spend of £2,300 from Lewes House recycling bin area, project reference [106609], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 8. It is recommended that Bradfield Club solar energy, project reference [106608],

- is cancelled and the remaining £23,063 is returned to community council for reallocation. The proposal to install solar panels on the roof of the club will not take the weight of the necessary structure.
- 9. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,400 from Peckham Square notice board, project reference [106612], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- It is recommended that the under spend of £2,800 from Honor Oak recreation play ground, project reference [106814], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- It is recommended that the under spend of £1,700 from Credenhill House staggered gates, project reference [106919], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 12. It is recommended that the under spend of £5,560 from Caroline Gardens benches Phase II, project reference [106922], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 13. It is recommended that the under spend of £2,300 from Friary Estate football pitch resurfacing, project reference [106924], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- It is recommended that the under spend of £2,900 from Bells Gardens outdoor gym, project reference [106916], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 15. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,500 from Jowett Street lighting, project reference [106923], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- It is recommended that the under spend of £3,500 from Garnies Close gates and fencing, project reference [106917], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 17. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,000 from Honiton lighting, project reference [107040], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 18. It is recommended that the under spend of £850 from Light up Clifton Way and Montague, project reference [107065], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 19. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,400 from Evelina road railings, project reference [107050], is returned to Community Council for reallocation.
- 20. It is recommended that the under spend of £200 from Boxing club cycle stands, project reference [107049], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 21. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,150 from Consort estate safety lighting, project reference [107063], is returned to community council for reallocation.
- 22. It is recommended that the unallocated 2016/2017 CGS programme funding of £1,103 from The Lane ward, £52 from Livesey ward and £6,505 from Peckham

ward is allocated as part of the 2017/2018 CGS programme.

- 23. It is recommended that £3,000 is allocated to Jowett Street park/Surrey Canal CCTV, project reference [106920] which was originally awarded £20,000 as part of the 2016/2017 CGS programme. The original scope of the project was to install one camera to cover this area of open space. Existing trees and buildings mean that a single camera cannot cover all the locations as required. The additional funding will cover the costs of a second camera, which in total exceeds the original budget.
- 24. It is recommended that £2,000 is allocated to Bells Gardens community garden, project reference [105869]. This is to allow for additional planting to replace failed and stolen planting from the original project.
- 25. It is recommended that the remaining £68,412 is reallocated as part of the 2017/2018 CGS programme.

Policy implications

26. There were none.

Community impact statement

- 27. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect the area.
- 28. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark's diverse local communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The cleaner greener safer programme is an important tool in achieving community participation.
- 29. In fulfilling the above objectives that community councils have of bringing together and involving Southwark's diverse local communities, consideration has also been give to the council's duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:
 - a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct;
 - b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristics and those who do not share it;
 - c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and those that do not share it.
- 30. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.
- 31. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need to:

- a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected characteristic;
- b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic;
- c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or any other activity in which they are underrepresented.

Resource implications

- 32. This is the reallocation of existing CGS funding that was originally awarded in 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 2016/2017. CGS funding is devolved to community councils to spend on suitable projects.
- 33. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs of the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the community council award letter will not include the professional fees which will be charged direct to project costs.
- 34. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding. Projects that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to community council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. Revenue costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon the asset owner. The business unit will be notified of the likely costs before the schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the scheme.
- 35. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, for example Housing, Parks, Highways, or in some cases external asset owners. Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the public realm projects business unit as a result of approving the proposed allocation.
- 36. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

Consultation

37. All cleaner greener safer projects require consultation with stakeholders, including the project applicant, local residents and tenants and residents associations where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

- 38. The allocation of the cleaner greener safer capital fund (CGS) is an executive function, delegated by the Leader to community councils.
- 39. Community councils are 'area committees' within the meaning of the Act and executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader.
- 40. This report is recommending that the Peckham and Nunhead Community

Council approve the reallocation of available funds from the 2008/2009, 2011/2012, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 programme as specified at appendix 1 to two existing projects and the 2017/2018 capital funding allocation. The power for this function is detailed in Part 3H paragraph 14 of the Constitution which states that community councils have the power of "approval of the allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet".

- 41. The appropriate cabinet member approved the funding for the 2014/2015, 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 programme by virtue of his powers under Part 3D paragraph 2 of the constitution. Where funding needs to be reallocated the community council approval being sought here is therefore the appropriate constitutional step in the process.
- 42. Community council members also have powers under paragraph 16 of Part 3H of the constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and implementation of the local schemes.
- 43. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the council's equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report author has demonstrated how those duties need to be considered in the body of the report at paragraphs 27 to 31 in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

- 44. This report requests the approval of the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council for the re-allocation of a total of £73,412, originally allocated to projects under the cleaner greener safer (CGS) programme, to other projects in the 2017/2018 Cleaner Greener Safer programme, as set out in Appendix 1.
- 45. The strategic director of finance and governance notes that the re-allocation of the funding will be contained within the existing departmental capital budgets for CGS allocated as part the council's capital programme.
- 46. Staffing and any other costs connected with this recommendation to be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers	Held At	Contact
Nunhead and Peckham Rye	Environment and Leisure	Michelle Normanly
Community Council meeting held on	/ Highways	020 7525 0862
Tuesday 15 July 2008, Minutes item	160 Tooley Street	0_0 1 0_0 000_
9	j	
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/Data/Nunhead%20and%20Peckham		
%20Rye%20Community%20Council/		
20080715/Agenda/Minutes.pdf		
Nunhead and Peckham Rye	Environment and Leisure	Andrea Allen
Community Council meeting held on Thursday 15 March 2012, Minutes	/ Highways 160 Tooley Street	020 7525 0860
litem 11	Too Tooley Street	
http://moderngov.southwarksites.c		
om/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=17		
7&MId=3958&Ver=4		
Peckham and Nunhead Community	Environment and Leisure	Michelle Normanly
Council meeting held on Wednesday 12 February 2014, Minutes item 14	/ Highways 160 Tooley Street	020 7525 0862
12 rebidary 2014, Williates item 14	Too Tooley Street	
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com		
/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=352&Ml		
d=4705&Ver=4		
Peckham and Nunhead Community Council meeting held on Monday 23	Environment and Leisure	Michelle Normanly 020 7525 0862
March 2015, Minutes item 13	/ Highways 160 Tooley Street	020 7323 0602
I waren 2016, wiinatee kem 16		
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com		
/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=352&Ml		
d=4846&Ver=4	Environment and Laigure	Michalla Normanly
Peckham and Nunhead Community Council meeting held on Saturday 6	Environment and Leisure / Highways	Michelle Normanly 020 7525 0862
February 2016, Minutes item 14	160 Tooley Street	323 7323 3332
	,	
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com		
/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=352&Ml		
d=5288&Ver=4		

APPENDICES

No.	Title
Appendix 1	Cleaner Greener Safer programme funding reallocation - 28 January 2017

AUDIT TRAIL

	ı				
Lead Officer	Jason White, Group Manager, Network Development				
Report Author	Michelle Normanly,	Senior Project Manager	٢		
Version	Final				
Dated	19 January 2017				
Key Decision?	No				
CONSULTATION	WITH OTHER OFF	ICERS / DIRECTORATI	ES / CABINET		
	MEN	IBER			
Office	Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included				
Director of Law and	Democracy Yes Yes				
Strategic Director of	f Finance Yes Yes				
and Governance					
Cabinet Member No No					
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 19 January 2017					

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer programme Funding reallocation - 28 January 2017

Appendix 1

Project name	Year of Award	Approval date	Ward	Reason for under spend	Original award	Amount to be returned to Community Council
001431 Solomon's Passage Community Safety and	2008 - 2009	15/07/2008	Peckham Rye	Project completed under budget.	£13,000	£10,429
Environmental Improvements	and 2011 - 2012	and 15/03/2012	,		,	,
106373 Rowan and Pear Court garden	2014 - 2015	12/02/14	Peckham	Project completed under budget.	£18,750	£3,700
106609 Lewes House recycling bin area	2015 - 2016	07/02/15	Livesev	Project completed under budget.	£10,000	£2,300
106608 Bradfield Club solar energy	2015 - 2016	07/02/15	Peckham	Roof of the Club will not support the additional weight of the solar panel installation. Project unfeasible.	£24,908	
106612 Peckham Square notice board	2015 - 2016	07/02/15	Peckham	Project completed under budget.	£2,600	£1,400
106814 Honor Oak recreation play ground	2015 - 2016	23/03/15	Peckham Rye	Project completed under budget.	£20,000	
106919 Credenhill House staggered gates	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Livesey	Project completed under budget.	£3,900	£1,700
106922 Caroline Gardens benches Phase II	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Livesey	Project completed under budget.	£13,750	£5,560
106924 Friary Estate football pitch resurfacing	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Livesey	Project completed under budget.	£18,750	£2,300
106916 Bells Gardens outdoor gym	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Peckham	Project completed under budget.	£23,500	£2,900
106923 Jowett Street lighting	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Peckham	Project completed under budget.	£6,500	£1,500
106917 Garnies Close gates and fencing	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Peckham	Project completed under budget.	£7,800	£3,500
107040 Honiton lighting	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Nunhead	Project completed under budget.	£6,300	£1,000
107065 Light up Clifton Way and Montague	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Nunhead	Project completed under budget.	£6,580	£850
107050 Evelina road railings	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Nunhead	Project completed under budget.	£11,600	£1,400
107049 Boxing club cycle stands	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	The Lane	Project completed under budget.	£1,500	£200
107063 Consort estate safety lighting	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	The Lane	Project completed under budget.	£7,900	£1,150
The Lane ward unallocated	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	The Lane	Unallocated 2016 - 2017 funding		£1,103
Livesey ward unallocated	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Livesey	Unallocated 2016 - 2017 funding	£52	£52
Peckham ward unallocated	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Peckham	Unallocated 2016 - 2017 funding	£6,505	£6,505
Total to be returned to Peckham and Nunhead Comm	unity Council					£73,412
Livesey						£11,912
Nunhead						£3,250
Peckham						£42,568
Peckham Rye						£13,229
The Lane						£2,453

EXISTING PROJECTS REQUIRING ADDITIONAL FUNDING							
Proposal	Year of Application	Approval date	Ward	Reason for allocation	Original award	Additional funding requested	
106920 Jowett Street park/Surrey Canal CCTV	2016 - 2017	06/02/16	Peckham	Additional camera to cover Surrey Canal Walk	£20,000	£3,000	
105869 Bells Gardens community garden	2013 - 2014	17/04/2013 and 07/02/2015	Peckham	Additional planting to replace failed and stolen planting	£5,900	£2,000	
Total to be allocated to existing projects	Total to be allocated to existing projects £5,000						

FOR REALLOCATION AS PART OF 2017/2018 CGS PROGRAMME						
Proposal	Year of Application	Approval date	Ward	Reason for allocation	Original award	Amount to be allocated
Livesey						£11,912
Nunhead						£3,250
Peckham						£37,568
Peckham Rye						£13,229
The Lane						£2,453
Total to be reallocated to new projects as part of 2017/2018 programme £68,412						

Item No. 8.	Classification: Open	Date: 28 January 2017	Meeting Name: Peckham and Nunhead Community Council		
Report title:		Cleaner Greener Safer 2017/18: Capital Funding Allocation			
Ward(s) or affected:	groups	Livesey, Nunhead, Peckham, Peckham Rye, The Lane			
From:		Head of Highways			

RECOMMENDATION

1. To approve the allocation of funds for the 2017-18 cleaner greener safer capital programme in the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council area from the list of applications set out in appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

- 2. The council's cleaner greener safer capital programme has been running since 2003.
- 3. In the first fourteen years of the CGS programme, £34,153,000 has been allocated to community councils leading to 2,500 projects being approved.
- 4. In the Peckham and Nunhead community council area, £8,659,072 has been allocated to 578 projects, 525 of which have been completed to date.
- 5. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include:
 - Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife areas
 - Children's playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks
 - Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling 'grot spots'
 - Grants to local groups to self-deliver projects.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

- 6. There is £402,857 available for the 2017/18 CGS capital programme for new projects in the Peckham and Nunhead community council area.
- 7. Any unallocated money from the funding programme for previous years will also be reallocated subject to approval in a separate report.
- 8. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and make an area cleaner, greener or safer.
- 9. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries, costs for events, festivals, workshops or other one-off events are not eligible for capital funding. CCTV proposals and internal improvements to housing property and works on schools where there is no access to the general public are also not eligible.

- Works on private property are not eligible unless there is a long-term guarantee of public access or a demonstrable public benefit.
- 10. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to deliver projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this is both practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the feasibility process. In such cases, the council would give the funding allocation to the applicant in the form of a capital grant, with appropriate conditions attached.

Policy implications

11. The cleaner green safer programme is fully aligned with the council's policies around sustainability, regeneration and community engagement.

Community impact statement

- 12. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect the area.
- 13. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark's diverse local communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The cleaner greener safer programme is an important tool in achieving community participation.
- 14. In fulfilling the above objectives of community councils to bring together and involve Southwark's diverse local communities, consideration has also been given to the council's duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:
 - a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct;
 - b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristics and those who do not share it;
 - c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and those that do not share it.
- 15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.
- 16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:
 - Remove or minimize disadvantages connected with a relevant protected characteristic;
 - b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic;

- c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate in public life or any other activity in which they are underrepresented.
- 17. Ideas for CGS projects come from the local community, the majority via a simple project nomination form available in electronic and paper format.

Resource implications

- 18. The funding for the CGS capital programme from 2011 to 2021 was approved by the cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital programme as detailed in the ccapital programme 2011–2021 report dated 21 June 2011.
- 19. The funding for the 2017/18 CGS capital programme was approved by the cabinet member for transport environment and recycling as detailed in the launch of cleaner greener safer capital programme 2015/16 report dated August 2014.
- 20. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs of the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the award amount announced at community council includes professional fees. The community council award letter to grant recipients details the grant amount only, excluding these fees.
- 21. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding. Projects that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to community council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. Revenue costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon the asset owner. The department will be notified of the likely costs before the schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the scheme.
- 22. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, for example housing, parks, highways, or in some cases external asset owners. Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the highways division as a result of approving the proposed allocation.
- 23. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.
- 24. Value for money will be ensured when the contract is procured by following the council's contract standing orders.

Consultation

25. All cleaner greener safer projects require consultation with stakeholders, including the project applicant, local residents, tenants and residents associations and local community groups where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

- 26. The allocation of the cleaner, greener, safer capital fund (CGS) is an executive function, delegated by the Leader to community councils.
- 27. Community councils are 'area committees' within the meaning of the act and executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader.
- 28. This report is recommending that the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council approve the allocation of funds to the individual projects specified at appendix 1. The power for this function is detailed in Part 3H paragraph 14 of the constitution which states that community councils have the power of "approval of the allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet".
- 29. The cabinet member for transport environment and recycling approved the funding for the 2017/2018 programme in August 2014 by exercising his powers under Part 3D paragraph 2 of the constitution; and the community council approval being sought here is therefore the next constitutional step in the process.
- 30. Community council members also have powers under paragraph 16 of Part 3H of the constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and implementation of the local schemes.
- 31. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the council's equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report author has demonstrated how those duties need to be considered in the body of the report at paragraphs 12 to 17 in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

- 32. This report seeks the approval of the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council for the allocation of funds (£402,857) for the 2017/18 cleaner greener safer (CGS) programme in the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council area from the list of applications set out in appendix 1.
- 33. The Strategic Director of Finance and Governance notes the resource implications in the report that the proposed allocations will be contained within the council's capital programme.
- 34. It is also noted that officers' time and any other costs connected with this recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers	Held At	Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 2011–2021 – 21 June 2011, Minutes item 8	Environment and Leisure / Highways 160 Tooley Street	Michelle Normanly 020 7525 0862
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=302&MId=3813&Ver=4		
Appendix F: General Fund Capital Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 2011, Minutes item 8	Environment and Leisure / Highways 160 Tooley Street	Michelle Normanly 020 7525 0862
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=302&MId=3813&Ver=4		
Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer Capital Programme 2015/16 - August 2014	Environment and Leisure / Highways 160 Tooley Street	Michelle Normanly 020 7525 0862
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ie DecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798		

APPENDICES

No.	Title
Appendix 1	Peckham and Nunhead Community Council Cleaner Greener
	Safer Capital programme 2017/18: Applications

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer	Jason White, Group	Jason White, Group Manager, Network Development			
Report Author	Michelle Normanly,	Senior Project Manager	r		
Version	Final				
Dated	19 January 2017				
Key Decision?	No				
CONSULTATION	WITH OTHER OFFI	CERS / DIRECTORATE	S / CABINET		
	MEM	BER			
Officer	[·] Title	Comments Sought	Comments included		
Director of Law and	d Democracy	Yes	Yes		
Strategic Director	Strategic Director of Finance Yes Yes				
and Governance	and Governance				
Cabinet Member	No No				
Date final report se	Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 19 January 2017				

Reference	Proposal Name	Ward	Type of Application	
708095	Southwark Tenant and Resident Association Signage	Boroughwide	Capital & Revenue	
707936	BT Box decoration art	Boroughwide	Capital	
689970	Safer Cycles in Southwark	Boroughwide	Capital	
200005	Lets clean up Southwark! Make London a cleaner place!	Boroughwide	Revenue	
703871	Discounted lock scheme and stickers for bike racks for SOUTHWARK BOROUGH	Boroughwide	Revenue	
200080	Peckham hanging baskets	All Peckham	Capital	
707972	Franklyn Rodgers - Underexposed, commission refresh	All Peckham	Capital	
707328	Glengall Wharf Cycle & Buggy Initiative	All Peckham	Capital	
707801	Beautifying Dayton Grove with attractive camouflaging bin housings.	Nunhead	Capital	
200074	Overhead netting for ballcourt	Nunhead	Capital	
682744	Clifton Way Play Area	Nunhead	Capital	
682861	Safe and Sound	Nunhead	Capital & Revenue	
682890	SAFETY FOR THE ELDERLY AND DISABLED	Nunhead	Capital	
708101	Peckham Four Seasons	Nunhead	Capital	
708053	Refurb of St Mary's Frobisher Park	Nunhead	Capital	
708016	Flowers for Mortlock Close and Sunwell Close	Nunhead	Capital	
200001	Lighting the estate compounds	Nunhead	Capital	
707904	Improved front walls and gates on Dayton Grove	Nunhead	Capital	
688517	Howbury Road Planter	Nunhead	Capital	
707825	Staring eyes	Nunhead	Capital	
707306	ARARA DeLights Lighting the way for community success	Nunhead	Capital	

Reference	Proposal Name	Ward	Type of Application	
707735	Restoring Dayton Grove's Victorian past with Heritage	Nunhead	Capital	
	Street Lighting			
707635	ARARA Fairy light Funding	Nunhead	Capital	
200002	Brayards CommunityPeaceGarden	Nunhead	Capital	
200003	Brayards Cleaner Greener Safer Lighting Project	Nunhead	Capital	
693733	Bike hangar Limesford Road	Nunhead	Capital	
706667	Improve waste collection and appearance of the	Nunhead	Capital	
	entrance to Cossall Estate			
706513	Juniper House - Back fence	Nunhead	Capital	
706242	St. Mary's Bicycle Storage	Nunhead	Capital	
706009	The Streets have eyes.	Nunhead	Capital	
705522	Cossall art4space project	Nunhead	Capital	
705192	Cossall outdoor gym for sheltered tenants	Nunhead	Capital	
705029	Monument repairs at Nunhead Cemetery	Nunhead	Capital	
704455	Growing all sorts at Brimmington Park Children	Nunhead	Capital	
	Playground			
200024	Barset Estate Play Area	Nunhead	Capital	
200013	Improvement to Garden behind 90 Queens road	Nunhead	Capital	
700176	Kirkwood Nature Reserve entrance improvements	Nunhead	Capital	
200067	North Peckham Estate hanging baskets 2017/18	Peckham	Capital	
200060	Sumner Willowbrook Pennack Road Safety Project	Peckham	Capital	
200059	Pennack Willowbrook Sports Project	Peckham	Capital	
707900	Playground areas for the under 5's	Peckham	•	
707817	Table Tennis @ Bells Gardens	Peckham	Capital	
707751	SGTO Youth Forum Community Garden	Peckham	Capital	
707265	Upper body gym	Peckham	Capital	
707261	Solar powered lights for noticeboards	Peckham	Capital	
707259	Fencing and gates	Peckham	Capital	
692818	Goldsmiths Nature Garden Improvements Phase 2	Peckham	Capital	
707239	Right of Passage in the Light	Peckham	Capital	
697784	Secure Bike Hangars - Cronin Street	Peckham	Capital	
698000	Samuel Jones Court bicycle lockers	Peckham	Capital	

Reference	Proposal Name	Ward	Type of Application
704438	Gardening for Wellbeing at Goldsmith Nature Garden	Peckham	Capital
702938	Damilola Taylor Basketball Rims	Peckham	Capital
700556	Gloucester Grove Estate Cycle Lockers	Peckham	Capital
699660	Planters for Furley Road	Peckham	Capital
200094	Goalposts and nets for Friary Estate MUGA by Aylesbury House	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200093	Bike shed for corner of Bird-in-Bush Road	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200079	Ledbury Estate ball court refurbishment	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200077	BT Box decoration art - Asylum Road/Queens Road	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200041	Peckham Four Seasons	Peckham Livesey	Capital
708184	Tae kwon do for everyone	Peckham Livesey	Revenue
708160	From this to that	Peckham Livesey	Revenue
707884	Peckham Modules	Peckham Livesey	Capital
707624	From THAT to THIS	Peckham Livesey	Revenue
707292	Fix Ya Bike at Livesey Exchange Old Kent Road	Peckham Livesey	Revenue
707203	Promoting English as a second language in Southwark (ESOL)	Peckham Livesey	Revenue
707022	Hanging Basket Garden on the Ledbury Estate	Peckham Livesey	Capital & Revenue
706457	A kickabout area for Lindley	Peckham Livesey	Capital
705819	Refurbishment of the Scheme	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200031	Replace stolen benches	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200030	Childrens activity and social area	Peckham Livesey	Capital
705086	Ledbury Street Dance Academy	Peckham Livesey	Capital
698536	Livesey Landscape	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200023	Ramp for Kitchen Garden	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200022	Large raised planter	Peckham Livesey	Capital
702576	Camelot Hill Gardens	Peckham Livesey	Capital
702512	Improving Lympstone Peace Gardens	Peckham Livesey	Capital
700863	King's Grove Cycle Parking	Peckham Livesey	Capital
200084	Peckham Rye Common Approach	Peckham Rye	Capital
681563	Oakhill Court Bike Lockers	Peckham Rye	Capital

Reference	Proposal Name	Ward	Type of Application
200042	Cycle hangar for Stuart Road	Peckham Rye	Capital
708185	Motorbikes Shelter	Peckham Rye	Capital
708178	Cheltenham Road- Community Garden	Peckham Rye	Capital
688945	Peckham Rye Outdoor Training Equipment	Peckham Rye	Capital
707550	Balchier Road Secure Bicycle Storage	Peckham Rye	Capital
706844	RYE HILL YOUTH CLUB	Peckham Rye	Capital & Revenue
706401	Oakhill Court Cycle Lockers	Peckham Rye	Capital
706224	More cycle hangars in Peckham Rye ward	Peckham Rye	Capital
704960	Security in SE22	Peckham Rye	Capital
707281	Pelican Plus TRA Storage	The Lane	Capital
681057	Cooperative Community Garden	The Lane	Capital & Revenue
200072	BT Box decoration art- The Lane 7 boxes	The Lane	Capital
682501	Atwell estate - Bike hangars	The Lane	Capital
200036	Cleaning the Brickwork at Peckham Rye Station	The Lane	Capital
708173	Strickland Court cycle lockers	The Lane	Capital
708147	Goose Green Playground Fencing Basketball Area and Safety Signs	The Lane	Capital
707907	Giant flower mural on 40ft tower on Consort Estate	The Lane	Capital
688131	Bellenden Road Bicycle Hangar	The Lane	Capital
707702	Beautification of Crane House 2nd Phase	The Lane	Capital
707647	Bellenden Big Tree	The Lane	Revenue
707614	Consort chimney mural	The Lane	Capital
690879	Urinals on Rye Lane	The Lane	Revenue
707391	Scylla Road Community Garden	The Lane	Capital
706366	Harmony Gardens	The Lane	Capital
693195	Lighting On The Consort Estate	The Lane	Capital
707063	Cycle lanes on Peckham one way system	The Lane	Capital
707060	Waghorn Street power station	The Lane	Capital
707055	Controlled parking zone Waghorn Street	The Lane	Revenue
707050	Goose Green Swings Hedgerow	The Lane	Capital
706646	Habitat Close Planting and Lights	The Lane	Capital
706361	Russell Court Garden	The Lane	Capital

Reference	Proposal Name	Ward	Type of Application
705892	59A Rye Lane - Better signage improvement	The Lane	Capital
705651	Bellenden Road wildlife garden	The Lane	Capital
705592	Warwick gardens children's play area	The Lane	Capital
200032	Safer, Greener, Peckham Middle Ground	The Lane	Capital
704993	Nutbrook Road - bike hangar	The Lane	Capital
200025	Heron House Grot Spot	The Lane	Capital
704759	Improvements to north end of Kirkwood Road	The Lane	Capital
704555	Nunhead estate improvement	The Lane	Capital
704524	Wivenhoe Close improvement	The Lane	Capital
703461	Refuse storage East Dulwich Road	The Lane	Capital
701610	St Johns and St Clements Orchard Project	The Lane	Capital
699376	Consort estate signage	The Lane	Capital

PECKHAM AND NUNHEAD COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016-17

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team all amendments/queries to Beverley Olamijulo Tel: 020 7525 7234

Name	No of copies	Name	No of copies
To all Members of the Community Council Councillor Sunil Chopra (Chair) Councillor Sandra Rhule (Vice-Chair)	1 1	Others Elizabeth Olive, Audit Commission 160 Tooley Street	1
Councillor Evelyn Akoto Councillor Jasmine Ali Councillor Nick Dolezal Councillor Gavin Edwards	1 1 1 1	Total:	25
Councillor Renata Hamvas Councillor Barrie Hargrove Councillor Richard Livingstone Councillor Victoria Mills Councillor Jamille Mohammed Councillor Cleo Soanes Councillor Johnson Situ	1 1 1 1 1 1	Dated: 20 January 2017	
Members of the community council receiving electronic copies only			
Councillor Michael Situ Councillor Fiona Colley			
Officers Beverley Olamijulo Constitutional Officer Hub 2 2 nd Floor, 160 Tooley Street	10		
Gill Kelly Community Councils Development Officer Hub 3 5th Floor 160 Tooley Street	1		